

**EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT
BETWEEN
PERRIS UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT
AND
GRANT BENNETT**

Pursuant to California Education Code Section 35031, the Governing Board (hereinafter the "Board") of and on behalf of the PERRIS UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT of Perris, California (hereinafter the "District"), and Grant Bennett (hereinafter the "Superintendent"), enter into an Agreement ("Agreement") effective ~~August 31, 2016~~ **November 17, 2016**. This Agreement's terms and conditions are as follows:

1. Term. Pursuant to Education Code Section 35031, the Superintendent is hereby appointed to the position of District Superintendent beginning ~~August 31, 2016~~ **November 17, 2016**, and ending ~~August 30, 2020~~ **October 31, 2020**.
2. Duties. The Superintendent shall perform the duties of District Superintendent as prescribed by the laws of the State of California. The Superintendent shall act as Secretary to the Board in accordance with Education Code Section 35025. In addition to the powers and duties set forth in Education Code Section 35035, the Superintendent shall have such powers and duties as are delegated to him by the Board. The Superintendent shall execute all powers and duties in accordance with the policies adopted by the Board and the rules and regulations of the State Board of Education.
3. Superintendent and Board Responsibilities. The Superintendent shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the District. As such, the Superintendent shall have the primary responsibility for execution of Board policy, whereas the Board shall retain the primary responsibility for formulating and adopting said policy.
4. Other Duties. The Superintendent (or his Designee) shall: (a) review all policies adopted by the Board and make appropriate recommendations to the Board; (b) periodically evaluate employees as provided for by California law and Board policy; (c) advise the Board of possible sources of funds that might be available to implement or contemplate District programs; (d) endeavor to maintain and improve professional competence by all available means, including subscription to and reading of appropriate periodicals, and joining and participating in

appropriate professional associations and their activities; (e) establish and maintain an appropriate community relations program; (f) have responsibility in all personnel matters not otherwise delegated pursuant to the policies of the Board; and (g) serve as liaison between the Board and Board's representative with respect to all employer-employee matters, and make recommendations to the Board concerning these matters.

5. Board Responsibilities. The Board, individually and collectively, will refer promptly criticisms, complaints and suggestions called to its attention to the Superintendent for study and recommendation.
6. Performance Objectives. Each year of this Agreement, the parties shall meet to establish the Superintendent's performance objectives. These objectives shall be reduced to writing and shall be based on the duties and responsibilities set forth in this Agreement.
7. Evaluation. The Board shall evaluate in writing, at least once each year for the duration of this contract, the performance of the Superintendent. The Board and the Superintendent shall attempt to mutually agree upon the form of the evaluation documents to be used. If the parties are unable to agree on the form of the evaluation document, the Board, by a majority vote, will determine the form. The evaluation shall be based upon the job performance objectives and other criteria defined in the preceding paragraph. The parties shall meet not later than the first meeting in October of each year for the purpose of delivering to the Superintendent the Board's evaluation. The content of the Board's evaluation shall be determined by a majority vote of the Board. Any failure of the Board to comply with the requirements of this paragraph or the preceding paragraph shall not constitute a material breach of contract, or preclude the Board from non-renewing or terminating the contract.
8. Compensation. The annual salary of the Superintendent, for the year beginning August 31, 2016 shall be according to the salary schedule below, and shall be increased each year by the same overall percentage increase applied to the District's Management Salary Schedule. The Superintendent shall start at Step 1 **and move one step on July 1st of each year.**

STEP 1	STEP 2	STEP 3	STEP 4	STEP 5
\$216,000	\$224,640	\$233,626	\$243,971	\$253,730

The Superintendent's annual salary shall be paid in twelve (12) equal monthly payments on the last working day of each month.

Any adjustment in salary made during the life of this contract shall be in the form of an amendment and shall become a part of this contract. It is provided, however, that by so doing it shall not be considered that the Board has entered into a new contract with the Superintendent, or that the termination date of the existing contract has been extended. However, the Board may by specific action extend the termination date of the existing contract. Any failure to attach the adjustment salary amount as an amendment shall not effect the validity or amount of any such adjustment. In no event shall the Superintendent's salary at any time be reduced below the initial salary stated in this contract, or any subsequent increase to such salary.

9. Fringe Benefits. The Superintendent shall be afforded such fringe benefits of employment as are granted to the District's management employees, except as otherwise set forth in this Agreement.
 - A. The District will pay the Superintendent's annual dues for ACSA, two local service clubs of his choice and other professional organizations as may be approved by the Board.
 - B. Upon retirement from the District, and concurrent retirement with the State Teachers Retirement System (STRS), the Superintendent shall receive the same health and welfare benefits package given other members of the Management Team until he is Medicare eligible, at which time these benefits will cease.
 - C. The Superintendent will be granted twenty-four (24) days of sick leave annually.
 - D. The Superintendent shall receive \$200,000 in term life insurance.

- E. The District shall pay up to \$5,000 during the term of this Agreement for a consultant to mentor the Superintendent in his new role.
10. Expense Reimbursement. Upon submission of expense reimbursement forms consistent with the District policy, the District shall reimburse the Superintendent for all actual and necessary expenses (except for use of his own automobile) incurred by him within the scope of his employment.
11. Work Year and Vacations. ~~The Superintendent shall be required to render twelve (12) full months of full and regular service to the District during each annual period covered by this Agreement, except that he shall be entitled to twenty-four (24) working days of annual vacation with pay,~~ **The Superintendent shall be required to render twelve (12) months of service to the District, which equates to two hundred and twenty-one (221) full and regular service days and twenty-four (24) vacation days with pay per school year,** and in addition, is entitled to the same holidays granted management employees. Vacation shall accrue monthly on a pro rata basis. Vacation is cumulative to a maximum of forty eight (48) working days. (If the Board and Superintendent mutually agree, the District may buy back up to fifteen (15) vacation days in June of each year of this Agreement.) The Superintendent shall be paid accumulated but unpaid vacation at termination of employment at the then prevailing salary rate. Nothing herein shall prohibit the Superintendent from using earned vacation days to undertake consultative work, speaking engagements, writing, lecturing, or other professional duties and obligations, provided such undertakings do not interfere with the Superintendent's performance of his duties under this Agreement.
12. Notification of Outside Application. In the event the Superintendent applies for a position with another employer, he shall inform the Board in writing if he becomes a finalist for that position. The Parties agree that the Superintendent's failure to comply with the provisions of paragraph 12 shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement and shall constitute sufficient grounds for the Governing Board to elect to terminate this Agreement for cause pursuant to paragraph 13.
13. Termination. Notwithstanding the term of this Agreement, this Agreement may be terminated by the Board at any time, with or without cause. Upon the termination by the Board of this

contract without cause, the District shall pay the Superintendent for the remainder of the contract or twelve (12) months salary, whichever is less, and health benefits for the lesser of the same period or until the Superintendent has obtained other employment. The Superintendent may terminate this Agreement upon six (6) months written notice to the Board. In addition, the parties may, by mutual consent, terminate the contract at any time. Furthermore, this Agreement shall terminate upon the death of Superintendent and District's obligations shall be limited to paying accrued salary and benefits to the date of termination.

Upon termination of this Agreement following two (2) years of employment, Superintendent may be eligible for reassignment to a classroom teaching position. In the event Superintendent is reassigned to a classroom teaching position in the District upon termination of this Agreement, the above "cash settlement" shall be offset by the Superintendent's salary in the new position.

If termination of this Agreement is for "cause," defined as any material breach of this Agreement by the Superintendent; any ground enumerated in Education Code section 44932; or material failure to perform responsibilities as set forth in this contract, or as defined by law, the Board's obligations shall be limited to paying the Superintendent's accrued salary and benefits to the date of termination. The Board shall not terminate this Agreement for cause until a written statement of the grounds for termination has first been served upon the Superintendent at least thirty (30) days before the proposed termination date. The Superintendent shall then be entitled to a conference with the Board within the thirty (30) days following his receipt of the Board's written statement, at which time the Superintendent shall be given a reasonable opportunity to address the Board's concerns. The Superintendent shall have the right, at his own expense, to have a representative of his choice at the conference with the Board. The conference with the Board shall be the Superintendent's exclusive right to any administrative hearing otherwise required by law. Following the conference, the Board shall issue to Superintendent a written decision.

14. Renewal and Extension of Agreement. In the event the Board determines that this Agreement shall not be renewed, the Superintendent shall be given written notice thereof by the Board by March 15 in advance of the expiration of this

Agreement. In the event such notice is not given and other renewal terms are not agreed upon in writing, the Superintendent shall be deemed re-elected for a term of one (1) year under the same terms and conditions and with the same compensation as the expiring Agreement. The Superintendent shall have an affirmative obligation to notify the Board in writing of this provision by February 1 in advance of the expiration this Agreement. Failure of the Superintendent to give such notification shall be deemed to be notice by the Board of non-renewal prior to March 15.

15. Amendments/Revisions. The Governing Board reserves the right to amend/revise, by mutual consent, any term of employment and the salary stated in this Agreement, said amendment/revision to be effective on the next succeeding first day of July unless otherwise agreed.
16. Attorneys' Fees. In the event of a dispute or controversy between the parties arising under the terms and conditions of this Agreement in which it becomes reasonably necessary to institute a legal action, the prevailing party shall be entitled to all reasonable attorneys' fees incurred.
17. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be construed in accordance with, and governed by the laws of the State of California; should any provision of this Agreement be invalid, the remainder of this Agreement shall nevertheless be binding and effective.
18. Notices. Any notices to be given hereunder by either party to the other shall be in writing and may be transmitted by personal delivery or by mail, registered or certified, postage prepaid with return receipt requested. Mailed notices shall be addressed to the parties at their respective administrative offices at the Perris Union High School District, 155 East 4th Street, Perris, California 92570, but either party may change that address by written notice in accordance with this Section 17. Notices delivered personally shall be deemed communicated as of the date of actual receipt; mailed notices shall be deemed communicated as of the date of mailing plus two (2) days.
19. Indemnity. The District will provide defense and indemnity to Superintendent for actions or proceedings which are brought against him in his official or individual capacity or both, on account of an act or omission in the scope of his employment as

an employee of the District as set forth in Government Code section 995, et seq. **Upon retirement or separation from the District, the Superintendent will continue to be indemnified for any actions taken against him related to his role as Superintendent.**

20. AB 1344. In accordance with the requirements of AB 1344, in the event this contract is terminated, any cash settlement paid to the Superintendent related to such termination shall be fully reimbursed to the District, within thirty (30) days, in the event the Superintendent is convicted of a crime involving an abuse of office or position as described in Government Code Section 53243.4. In addition, any funds paid for salary during a paid administrative leave pending an investigation into, or funds paid for criminal defense of, charges of abuse of office or position shall be fully reimbursed to the District in the event the Superintendent is convicted of such crime.
21. Entire Agreement. This Agreement supersedes any and all other agreements, either oral or in writing, between the parties hereto with respect to the employment of Superintendent by the District and contains all of the covenants and Agreements between the Parties with respect to that employment in any manner whatsoever. Each party to this Agreement acknowledges that no representation, inducement, promise or agreement, orally or otherwise, has been made by any party, or anyone acting on behalf of any party, which is not embodied herein, and that no other agreement, statement or promise not contained in this Agreement shall be valid or binding on either party.
22. Effect of Waiver. The failure of either party to insist on strict compliance with any of the terms, covenants or conditions of this Agreement by the other party shall not be deemed a waiver of that term, covenant or condition, nor shall any waiver or relinquishment of any right or power at any one time or times be deemed a waiver or relinquishment of that right or power for all or any other times.

APPROVED on ~~April 20, 2016~~ **November 16, 2016**, and irrespective of the date or sequence of execution by the parties to be effective ~~August 31, 2016~~ **November 17, 2016**.

November 16, 2016
Date

Grant Bennett
Superintendent

**THE GOVERNING BOARD OF AND ON BEHALF OF
THE PERRIS UNION HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT**

November 16, 2016
Date

David G. Nelissen
President

November 16, 2016
Date

Edward Agundez
Vice President

November 16, 2016
Date

Joan D. Cooley
Clerk

November 16, 2016
Date

Dr. Jose Luis Araux
Member

November 16, 2016
Date

Carolyn A. Twyman
Member